
 

 

City of Rainier 

Planning Commission Meeting 

May 12, 2021 

6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 

Chair Erin O’Connell called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.  

 

Commissioners Present: Erin O’Connell, Paul Langner, Dena Nordstrom, Nina Phillips and 

Laura Tretheway 

 

Commissioners Absent: None 

City Staff Present: City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen  

 

Visitors Present: Terry Deaton 

Visitor Comments: Deaton said that she has a drainage analysis for the Rinearson Slough area 

on the west side of town if the commission needs it.  

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda: Consider Approval of the February 10, 2021 and 

March 10, 2021 Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes-Commissioner Paul Langner 

moved to approve the February 10 minutes. That motion was seconded by Commissioner Dena 

Nordstrom and adopted unanimously. Langner moved to approve the March 10 minutes. That 

motion was seconded by Commissioner Nina Phillips and adopted unanimously.  

New Business: 

a. Flood Plain Ordinance—Chair Erin O’Connell said Columbia County is adopting 

language from the state to update its ordinance. City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen 

said that Langner provided language from Clatsop County for inclusion in the meeting  

packet. Langner said Clatsop County’s ordinance does more than what is required but 

is a model that’s out there. That ordinance is 37 pages long, is not user friendly and is 

difficult to work with. O’Connell said a flood plain ordinance is important, from a 

development standpoint. If a property owner wants to put a building in an area that 

could flood, they could be displaced. The city’s ordinance should be user friendly but 

have discretionary options included. Columbia County’s ordinance was essentially a 

template from the state. The public was notified about the county’s ordinance and 

people were upset because they didn’t understand it. The ordinance was daunting to 

read. The city can adopt an ordinance saying it’s adopting the county’s ordinance and 

include a FAQ with it. Langner said he liked the approach of using the county’s 

ordinance because the city’s permitting is done through the county. O’Connell said the 

city needs to identify its flood plain development manager as part of this process. Even 

though the city’s permitting is done through the county, nobody there looks at flood 

plain issues on the city’s behalf. The city should give itself discretionary decision 



 

 

making in its flood plain ordinance. Jorgensen asked if the county’s ordinance has been 

officially passed. O’Connell said it was approved by the county planning commission. 

He asked if not having the flood plain ordinance already in place is hindering potential 

development of the industrial and commercial zones on the city’s west side. O’Connell 

and Commissioner Laura Trethewey said it is. Langner suggested that the ordinance 

include the most recent Focal Impulse and Rotor Mapping, a statement that the city 

reserves the right to discretion and Base Flood Elevation certification. Commissioners 

agreed by consensus to direct Jorgensen to draft an ordinance with those parameters.  

Unfinished Business: 

a. Short Term Rental Ordinance—Phillips said she liked Seaside’s ordinance, but not the 

one from Cannon Beach. O’Connell agreed. Phillips said the Seaside ordinance is 

simple. Trethewey said she likes the idea of annual renewals on a yearly basis. 

O’Connell said that was part of the initial discussion. That approach would enable the 

city to review any complaints that may arise. Phillips said the fees charged by the city 

should be reasonable. There are AirBnBs in Longview, so there is local demand for it. 

Nordstrom suggested expanding the area of the neighbors to be notified about a short-

term rental application. Commissioners agreed by consensus to direct Jorgensen to 

draft an ordinance based on the one from Seaside. Jorgensen said he would want to 

include a clause similar to the one in the city’s food cart ordinance that enables staff to 

revoke a license if too many complaints are received but allows applicants to appeal 

that decision to the council. Langner recommended a $250 application fee and $250 

annual renewal fee. Phillips said she likes the portion of the Cannon Beach ordinance 

that deals with occupancy and parking.  

 

 

 

O’Connell adjourned the meeting at 7:37 p.m.  

 

 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 

Erin O’Connell, Chair                 Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder  

 

 

 



 

 

City of Rainier 

Planning Commission Meeting 

June 16, 2021 

6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 

Chair Erin O’Connell called the meeting to order at 6:17 p.m.  

 

Commissioners Present: Erin O’Connell, Dena Nordstrom and Nina Phillips  

 

Commissioners Absent: Paul Langner and Laura Trethewey 

City Staff Present: City Recorder Sarah Blodgett and City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen  

 

Visitors Present: Duane Bernard, Terry Deaton 

Visitor Comments: Duane Bernard introduced himself as the vice president of the Rainier 

Oregon Historical Museum. The museum wants to construct a building on its property, but the 

city’s code says that certain construction materials are prohibited in the zone where it’s located. 

Metal is one of them. The museum board is looking at doing a metal building instead of one 

made primarily of wood. They’re thinking of having a steel structure, siding and roof because the 

cost of lumber has gotten so high. O’Connell said design review is done by the city’s planner. 

It’s possible that a variance could be considered. She suggested that it be run by the city’s 

planner to get clarification. The code also says that high quality material can be used. Standards 

need to be applied consistently, but perhaps that portion of code can be better defined than it 

currently is. City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen said Bernard had asked him about it. He 

suggested that Bernard approach the commission. Jorgensen will reach out to the city’s planner 

to see if there are any options.  

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda: Consider Approval of the May 12, 2021 Regular 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes—Terry Deaton had some corrections. Those will be 

made and brought back to the Commission at its next meeting.  

Unfinished Business: 

a. Short Term Rental Ordinance—Jorgensen went over the ordinance draft. It’s largely 

based on the one from Seaside. Mayor Jerry Cole had concerns that allowing 

homeowners to use their entire houses for short-term rentals could contribute to the 

current lack of homes on the market available for permanent rental. They came up with 

the provision prohibiting no more than 50 percent of the rooms of a house being used 

for short-term vacation rentals. Commissioner Dena Nordstrom said at the previous 

meeting that she wanted to expand the area of neighbor notification from the 100 feet 

included in the Seaside ordinance. Jorgensen doubled that to 200 feet. He also included 

a revocation clause similar to the one he put in place for the food cart ordinance. Under 

the draft ordinance, short-term vacation rental licenses can be revoked by the city 



 

 

administrator if complaints are received, but the owner can appeal that decision to 

council. O’Connell asked about the provision that mentions inspections. Who would 

be doing the inspections? Jorgensen asked if the county would have adequate records 

that people could access to prove compliance. O’Connell said there are some permit 

history records, but that may be difficult for property owners to obtain. She suggested 

that a sentence be added to state that the inspections can be done by a licensed 

professional with expertise on fire, life and safety issues. O’Connell also wants to add 

that detached structures don’t count towards the number of rooms that can be rented. 

Commissioner Nina Phillips moved to recommend the ordinance to council, as 

amended. That motion was seconded by Nordstrom and adopted unanimously.  

b. Flood Plain Ordinance—O’Connell said that she conferred with some colleagues at the 

county, who told her that the best option was to reach out to the Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD). Jorgensen said he spoke with the contact at 

DLCD that O’Connell provided. That agency is willing to work with the city and its 

representative can attend a meeting via telephone to discuss the issue. Jorgensen read 

from his email correspondence with the DLCD representative, Celida Adair, that was 

included in the meeting packet. Adair felt that when the city updated its floodplain 

regulations in 2010, its code was not updated to rescind the previous version from 1986. 

The 2010 regulations are under Chapter 18.120 and the 1986 regulations are under 

Chapter 18.80. Chapter 18.80 has regulation language that is out of date and references 

maps from 1986 instead of the 2020 floodplain maps. Adair recommends that Chapter 

18.80 be rescinded and Chapter 18.120 be updated.  

 

Jorgensen told the commissioners that the city has been receiving inquiries from 

property owners who are outside of city limits who want to access water and sewer 

services. But the code does not address annexations or put forth any kind of policies, 

procedures or processes. City residents pay towards the city’s debt service for its 

general obligation bonds that funded its sewer system. Even if the city developed a 

policy of charging double base rates for residents beyond city limits, those parties still 

would not be paying towards that. O’Connell said that any annexation ordinance should 

require that a property be within the urban growth boundary prior to annexation and 

that it be contiguous to current city limits. She recommended using the annexation 

ordinance that St. Helens has as a template and starting point. Jorgensen said that a 

view preservation ordinance had come up in prior Planning Commission meetings. Is 

that something the group would like to look into? He did some research and found one 

from Rolling Hills, California. Many of its references are specific to Southern 

California locations. O’Connell said that she remembered Kalama, Washington 

looking into something similar. Astoria might also have an ordinance that’s worth 

looking at.  

 

O’Connell adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m.  

 



 

 

 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 

Erin O’Connell, Chair                 Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder  

 

 

 

 



file:///D|/Files/WebDev/rainier/Agenda/planning%20commission/2021%20July%2021/4%20RE%20Zoning%20Inquiry.txt[7/16/2021 8:42:30 AM]

From:   Owens, Keshia <kowens@cwcog.org>
Sent:   Monday, July 12, 2021 4:05 PM
To:     Scott Jorgensen
Cc:     Fashing, Bill
Subject:        RE: Zoning Inquiry

Scott,

From what I have seen in the past if something is expressly prohibited, a variance to allow the use won't 
suffice. Per 18.135.020 Limitations (Variance section of the Code):

No variance shall be granted which will permit a use not permitted in the zone applicable to the 
property or to alter any procedural requirement of this title.

As written we cannot use a variance to allow for a metal building because that would conflict with 
variance limitation standards.

I think the best way to move forward would be with a text amendment to allow for metal buildings in 
the WM Overlay, which would be reviewed by 18.125.030.
C. Criteria. Text amendments shall be consistent with the following criteria:

        1. Applicable provisions of the Rainier comprehensive plan; and

        2. Applicable statewide planning goals and/or administrative rules as adopted by the Land 
Conservation and Development Commission. 

Thus far there are no conflicts with the Comp Plan or statewide planning goals 
(https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/OP/Documents/goalssummary.pdf). 

Please let me know your thoughts.

Keshia
-----Original Message-----
From: Scott Jorgensen <Sjorgensen@cityofrainier.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 21, 2021 1:35 PM
To: Owens, Keshia <kowens@cwcog.org>
Subject: Zoning Inquiry

Keshia,

The vice president of the Rainier Oregon Historical Museum addressed the Planning Commission at its 
last meeting, as I had advised him to do. 
The museum owns a piece of property in the city's Waterfront Mixed Use zone and wants to construct a 
building there. They're recognizing that the rising cost of lumber may be an obstacle and want to use 
steel for the structure, siding and roof. 
However, our code includes metal in its list of prohibited materials. 
They want some direction before they move any further into the design review process. I've attached 
what he brought to the meeting, to show what they're thinking. Is there any kind of variance that can be 
granted, or other options available? We'd really like to work with these guys to get the museum building 
up and open. 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA



file:///D|/Files/WebDev/rainier/Agenda/planning%20commission/2021%20July%2021/4%20RE%20Zoning%20Inquiry.txt[7/16/2021 8:42:30 AM]

City Administrator
City of Rainier
503-556-7301







 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1081 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 REPEALING ORDINANCE 974 

 

WHEREAS, on August 17, 1998, the City of Rainier adopted Ordinance No. 974 Adopting 

Amendments to the City of Rainier Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 974 was codified as Chapter 18.80 of the Rainier Municipal Code, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2010, the City of Rainier adopted Ordinance No. 1055 Pertaining 

to Flood Damage Prevention in the City of Rainier, and  

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1055 was codified as Chapter 18.120 of the Rainier Municipal Code, 

and  

 

WHEREAS, city staff has consulted with officials from the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) about updating the City’s flood plain regulations, and  

 

WHEREAS, DLCD advised that the City has two sets of overlapping and sometimes conflicting 

flood plain regulations, and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 974 was not rescinded when the City’s floodplain regulations were 

updated in 2010 through the passage of Ordinance 1055, and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapters 18.80 of the Rainier Municipal Code includes regulation language that is 

outdated and references 1986 floodplain maps instead of more recent 2020 floodplain maps, and  

 

WHEREAS, based on the input from DLCD, city staff has decided that Ordinance 974 should be 

repealed, as it is outdated and no longer serving its intended purpose; 

 

WHEREAS, it appears to the City of Rainier council that the public interest will best be served 

by repealing this ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Rainier ordains as follows: Ordinance No. 974, adopted on August 

17, 1998, is hereby repealed. 

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2021.  

 

 

BY: _________________________________ 

 

Jerry Cole, Mayor 



 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

BY: _________________________________ 

 

Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 














	3 PC 05122021 minutes
	3 PC 06162021 Minutes
	4 RE Zoning Inquiry
	Local Disk
	D:\Files\WebDev\rainier\Agenda\planning commission\2021 July 21\4 RE Zoning Inquiry.txt


	5a DLCD
	5a Ordinance 1055
	5a Ordinance 1081
	5a Ordinance 974
	5b St Helens Annexation Ordinance

